

# Single Call for European and International Mobility for the A.Y. 2026/2027

STUDENT MOBILITY FOR STUDIES (SMS)

(For the ERASMUS+ SMS scope: 2025-1-IT02-KA131-HED-000321324; contract I-PARMA01 2026 pending approval by the National Erasmus+ Agency INDIRE)

Application deadline: 23 DECEMBER 2025 (12:00 PM)

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Single Call for European and International Mobility for the A.Y. 2026/2027 1
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2
INTRODUCTION 3
THE EUROPEAN UNIVERSITY EU GREEN 3
HOW TO READ THE CALL 4
1. EUROPEAN AND INTERNATIONAL STUDENT MOBILITY: GENERAL INFORMATION 5
1.1 Activities 5
1.2 Target and Requirements 5
1.3 Types of Mobility 5
1.4 Mobility and Inclusion 6
1.5 The Language Requirement 6
1.5.1 The University Language Placement Test 7
1.6 Destinations 7
1.7 Terms and Conditions for Submitting the Application 8
1.8 Selection Procedures 8
1.9 Publication of Rankings 9
1.10 Acceptance of the Mobility Placement and Ranking Shifts 9
2. MOBILITY GRANTS 11
2.1 Available Grants 11
2.1.1 The Ordinary ERASMUS+ Grant for Long-term Flows (2-12 months) 12
2.1.2 The Ordinary OVERWORLD and SPECIAL PROJECTS Grant 12
2.1.3 Ordinary ERASMUS+ Grant for Short-term Flows (5-30 days) 13
2.2 Supplementary Grants and Minimum Credits 13
2.3 Further Supplementary Grants 13
2.3.1 Presence of Certified Disabilities or Physical, Mental, or Health Problems
2.3.2 Socioeconomic Disadvantage Conditions 13
2.3.3 Er.Go Call Supplementary Grants (External Grants) 13
2.4 Compatibility of Mobility Initiatives and Grants 14
2.5 Summary Table of Grants 15
ORDINARY GRANTS FOR LONG-TERM MOBILITY (2 – 12 MONTHS) 15
SUPPLEMENTARY GRANTS FOR LONG-TERM MOBILITY (2 – 12 MONTHS) 15
SUPPLEMENTARY GRANTS FOR TRAVEL COSTS* 17
ORDINARY GRANTS FOR SHORT-TERM MOBILITY (5 – 30 DAYS) 18
SUPPLEMENTARY GRANTS FOR SHORT-TERM MOBILITY (5 – 30 DAYS) 18
Mobility and Emergency Conditions 19



Contacts ..... 19

Responsible for the Procedure...... 19

#### **INTRODUCTION**

The University of Parma, with the contribution and support of the National ERASMUS+ Agency INDIRE Italy and the Ministry of University and Research (MUR), considers exchange mobility as a strategic objective for the training of its students, offering opportunities for attending courses and curricular internships, preparing degree and PhD theses, as well as acquiring a double degree at various prestigious European and international universities.

The Single Call for European and International Mobility for Study Purposes (SMS, Student Mobility for Studies) brings together all the opportunities offered by the University for acquiring foreign credits during study periods ranging from two to twelve months within four distinct areas (ERASMUS+ SMS, EU GREEN, OVERWORLD, and SPECIAL PROJECTS).

The mobility opportunities refer to:

- The European Program ERASMUS+ (for ERASMUS+ SMS and EU GREEN flows)
- The University Program OVERWORLD (for "Overworld" and "SPECIAL PROJECTS" flows).

**ERASMUS+** is the European Union's reference Program in the fields of education, training, youth, and sport for the period 2021-2027. With particular reference to the available destinations within the ERASMUS+ SMS and EU GREEN areas of this call, the specific objectives are:

- promote the mobility of individuals and groups for learning purposes as well as cooperation, quality, inclusion and equity, excellence, creativity and innovation at the level of organizations and policies in the field of education and training;
- promote mobility for non-formal and informal learning purposes, active participation of young people, as well as cooperation, quality, inclusion, creativity and innovation at the level of youth organizations and policies;
- promote mobility for the learning of sports staff as well as cooperation, quality, inclusion, creativity and innovation at the level of sports organizations and policies.

**OVERWORLD** is the Program promoted by the University of Parma that favors the **mobility of its students towards non-European universities** having an active educational and scientific collaboration agreement with our University. Similarly to the SMS action of the ERASMUS+ Program, students selected for an OVERWORLD mobility period receive a financial grant and have the possibility to attend courses and use the facilities available at the host institution without paying additional registration fees (except for specific double degree programs – see "Annex A – List of Destination Institutions by Area").

The "ERASMUS+ SMS" and "OVERWORLD" areas are inclusive of opportunities related to participation in DOUBLE DEGREE PROGRAMS with European and non-European universities.

The "SPECIAL PROJECTS" area contains mobility opportunities within initiatives aimed not only at mobility for acquiring credits but also at the contribution of selected students to specific projects that contribute to the growth and development of university realities involved in the world of cooperation.

### THE EUROPEAN UNIVERSITY EU GREEN



Starting from January 1, 2023, the University of Parma is a partner of the European university alliance EU GREEN (European Universities Alliance for Sustainability, responsible GROwth, inclusive Education and ENvironment). In addition to the University of Parma, the alliance involves the following universities:

- Universidad de Extremadura (ES)
- Atlantic Technological University (IRL)
- Universitatea din Oradea (RO)
- Universidade de Evora (PT)
- Université d'Angers (FR)
- Otto-von-Guericke Universität Magdeburg (DE)
- Högskolan i Gävle (SE)
- Wrocław University of Environmental and Life Sciences (PL)

Over the next few years, the EU GREEN alliance aims to create an open "European campus", within which all students will be free to move and collaborate to take advantage of the different opportunities offered by the individual universities, and by the projects that will be jointly developed, on the theme of sustainability. Pending the full realization of this, the partner institutions of the Alliance have already established preferential channels for mobility: in case of selection for one of the EU GREEN Alliance partner institutions, it will be possible to contact the International Relations and EU GREEN Organizational Unit of the University (eugreen@unipr.it) to obtain more information on mobility planning.

Within the scope of this call, and following the signing of the Multilateral Mobility and Exchange Agreement, several options are active for undertaking a mobility period to an EU GREEN institution during the A.Y. 2026/2027. Within this call, it is necessary to select the "EU GREEN" scope in the ESSE3 call section. All students selected for an intra-Alliance flow will subsequently be convened to receive all useful instructions for organizing their mobility period. All flows within the EU GREEN alliance are subject to the rules and benefits of the ERASMUS+ Program.

#### **HOW TO READ THE CALL**

The Single Call is open to students enrolled in one of the degree programs of the University of Parma for the A.Y. 2025/2026, including inter-university programs with the University of Parma as the administrative seat. All flows selected under this Call will take place during the A.Y. 2026/2027.

The following are an integral part of the Call:

- Annex A List of destination institutions divided by area
- Annex B Guide to ERASMUS+ Mobility
- Annex C Guide to OVERWORLD Mobility
- Annex D Specific Selection Criteria
- Annex E Instructions for Completing the ESSE3 Application
- Annex F Preferred Destinations with Motivational Letter



#### 1. EUROPEAN AND INTERNATIONAL STUDENT MOBILITY: GENERAL INFORMATION

#### 1.1 Activities

Student mobility under this Call allows the following activities:

- Study: attending courses and taking the related assessment tests (exams) in order to acquire
  credits, also by participating in double degree programs within degree programs that offer this
  opportunity;
- Study and Curricular Internship (Combined Mobility). This type of mobility is allowed:
  - o Only if the internship is included in the student's study plan
  - o Only after having agreed on its feasibility with the host institution;
  - o Only in addition to attending courses (It is not possible to carry out exclusively internship activities);
- Preparation of the degree thesis;
- Teaching activities, research and thesis preparation for PhD students.

If intending to carry out mobility for thesis purposes, it is mandatory to identify a supervising professor at Unipr, to be included in the appropriate section of Annex F, and it is recommended to verify immediately the feasibility of the project and the availability of a supervising professor at the partner institution of interest.

Mobility activities must take place between June 1, 2026 and July 31, 2027.

## 1.2 Targets and Requirements

In order to submit an application, the candidate must possess the following requirements:

- be regularly enrolled in the A.Y. 2025/2026, full-time or part-time, in an active first, second or third
  cycle degree program at the University of Parma, including inter-university programs (only if the
  University of Parma is the administrative center). It is not possible to apply for this call if enrolled in
  first or second level University Masters or in individual courses;
- not be resident in the Country towards which mobility is requested;
- not have used the maximum number of mobility months (12 months for Bachelor's, Master's, PhD or 24 months for Single-Cycle Master's Degrees) for each study cycle.

## 1.3 Types of Mobility

The methods for carrying out mobility are:

A – Physical Mobility (PM) – is mobility carried out entirely in person at the partner institution for a period between 2 and 12 months (long-term mobility). Teaching activity carried out remotely is also considered Physical Mobility (PM) provided that the student is physically present in the destination country.

B – Blended Mobility (BM) - means a period of virtual mobility (conducted online without going to the destination country) combined with a period of physical mobility according to the following methods:



- Long-term mobility: from 2 to 12 months of physical mobility + virtual mobility
- Short-term mobility: from 5 to 30 days of physical mobility + virtual mobility (virtual mobility optional ONLY for PhD students).

The choice of a blended mobility requires:

- 1. Choice of institutions included in the "ERASMUS+ SMS" and "EU GREEN" areas.
- 2. Planning prior to departure: the mobility mode cannot be changed once mobility has begun.
- 3. Approval of the home and host institutions for carrying out this type of mobility
- 4. Definition of the study program with the Reference person of the Commission for International **Mobility** of one's own Department
- 5. Precise planning and communication to the competent offices of the two Universities of the **virtual** and physical mobility periods.

It is not possible to carry out exclusively virtual mobility.

### 1.4 Mobility and Inclusion

Mobility is an opportunity for everyone. Therefore, everyone must be in a position to undertake a study period abroad. The University of Parma, in line with the priorities of the ERASMUS+ Program, implements various forms of active support for disadvantaged categories, interfacing with partner institutions to promptly communicate the presence of certified disabilities or physical, mental, or health problems and to intervene in cases requiring specific support. Dedicated funding forms are also available, detailed in section 2.5 – Summary Table of Grants.

## 1.5 The Language Requirement

Students selected under this Call are required to meet the language requirements of the assigned host institution, respecting the times and methods dictated by the institution itself.

Having the language level required by the host institution is therefore not a prerequisite for applying to this Call; however, each Department may consider a certain language level, demonstrated at the time of application, as a preferential criterion during the selection process (see Annex D – Specific Selection Criteria).

It is the exclusive duty of the student to verify, before applying to this call:

- 1. The language level required by the host institution;
- 2. The type of certification accepted by the host institution;
- 3. The deadlines by which the certification must be sent to the host institution.

## 1. The language level required by the host institution:

Information regarding the language requirement is generally available in the section of the destination Universities' websites dedicated to enrollment procedures (application for incoming mobility students). To facilitate finding this information, Annex A of this call reports, for each destination institution, both the website and the indications provided by the partner University regarding its language requirements. The University of Parma assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of this data, which may be updated after the publication of this Call.

Furthermore, it is essential to verify with the host institution which courses are available in the vehicular



language (for example, English) and which are in the native language, as it may be necessary to demonstrate to the host institution **knowledge of more than one language.** 

#### 2. The type of certification/attestation accepted by the host institution:

Foreign host institutions may require CEFR (Common European Framework of Reference for Languages) certifications or attestations that are either internationally accredited (e.g., TOEFL, IELTS, DELF, GOETHE...) or of another type.

It is therefore essential to verify not only the required language level but also the **type of certification/attestation accepted.** 

3. The deadlines by which the certification/attestation must be sent to the host institution: Host institutions may require sending the language certificate according to timelines that vary depending on the internal procedures of the partner Universities. It is therefore essential to have the certification/attestation within the prescribed deadlines required by the host institution.

Any language skills held at the time of application to the Call can be declared in Annexe F, corresponding to each preferred institution. The relative language certification/attestation, if already held, can be uploaded when applying (see point 1.7). The language certifications/attestations accepted for the call application are available on the page <a href="http://www.unipr.it/LPT">http://www.unipr.it/LPT</a>.

### 1.5.1 The University Language Placement Test

As a support tool for participation in European and international mobility programmes, the University of Parma administers the Language Placement Test (LPT) each year through its University Language Centre (CLA).

The Language Placement Test does not replace any specific language certifications required by partner institutions, but allows students who wish to participate in a European and international mobility project to:

- verify their level of language competence before the application
- obtain a certificate indicating the achieved language level, which can be downloaded from the Elly platform

With a view to satisfying the language requirement necessary for admission to the host institutions, in case one does not already hold a language certification, it is strongly recommended to identify the destination institutions and **complete the application after taking the Language Placement Test**, to indicate preferred institutions that are compatible with the held language level or with the level reasonably achievable within the deadlines required by the host institution.

The LPT tests taken in the calendar years 2024 and 2025 are valid for participation in this Call.

The LPT session calendar and all related information, as well as other accepted attestations/certifications for participation in the Call, are available on the page <a href="http://www.unipr.it/LPT">http://www.unipr.it/LPT</a>.

#### 1.6 Destinations

It is possible to include a maximum of 4 institutions in one's application, regardless of the number of areas involved (ERASMUS+ SMS, EU GREEN, OVERWORLD, Special Projects).

The selected institutions must be indicated, in order of preference, within Annex F – Preferred Destinations with Motivational Letter; the order of preference is binding for the assignment of the mobility placement.



When applying on Esse3, it is expected to fill out one application for each area of interest (ERASMUS+ SMS, EU GREEN, OVERWORLD, Special Projects); the order of preference expressed when entering the application on Esse3 must correspond to that indicated in Annex F.

The list of available institutions is in Annex A "List of Destination Institutions by Area", which provides information on the number of places and duration available for each destination and for each Degree Program. In the Notes section, additional requirements requested by the institution can also be found.

It is important to consider that:

- The destination institutions in the "ERASMUS+ SMS" and "EU GREEN" areas involve study periods at
  partner universities for a minimum of 2 months (60 days) up to a maximum of 12 months (360
  days) continuous in time, with the exceptions provided for flows of students enrolled in PhD
  programs.
- The destination institutions in the "OVERWORLD" and "SPECIAL PROJECTS" areas refer to mobility
  flows aimed at study periods at non-European partner universities, for a minimum of 3 months (90
  days) up to a maximum of 12 months continuous in time, with the exceptions provided for flows of
  students enrolled in PhD programs.

The "ERASMUS+ SMS" and "OVERWORLD" include opportunities related to participation in double degree programs with European and non-European universities. The institutions available for this type of mobility can be identified by applying the "DD" (Double Degree) filter in the first column of the specific area within Annex A of the Call.

#### 1.7 Terms and Conditions for Submitting the Application

The application can be completed online starting from December 1, 2025 by logging into your personal ESSE3 profile from the page <a href="https://unipr.esse3.cineca.it/Home.do">https://unipr.esse3.cineca.it/Home.do</a> – International Mobility Section – Mobility Calls.

The application, with the required attachments (identical for each application submitted), must be completed and submitted by no later than 12:00 PM on December 23, 2025.

Within Esse3, it is expected to fill out one application for each desired area; for each area, it is mandatory to upload the same Annex F.

Each application is complete only if accompanied by all mandatory attachments, in detail: **Mandatory Attachments:** 

- Annex F Preferred Destinations with Motivational Letter completed in all its parts;
- Self-certification of Enrollment with Exams (downloadable from ESSE3).

#### **Optional Attachments:**

- Any language certifications/attestations held at the time of application;
- Any further documents useful for the evaluation.

Incomplete applications will not be accepted. It is not possible to modify, cancel or integrate submitted applications. No exceptions to the application submission deadline are allowed.

For correct completion of the application, candidates are invited to read the instructions in Annex E – Instructions for Completing the Online Application.



If, at the time of application submission, you are regularly enrolled, for the A.Y. 2025/2026, in a Bachelor's (L), Master's (LM), or Single-Cycle Master's (LMCU) degree program but you still do not have a student ID number, it is necessary to apply to the call using the specific form prepared for the paper application, which must be requested well in advance from erasmus@unipr.it. In this case, the paper application form must be delivered, with the required attachments, to the University Protocol Office (via Università, 12 – 43121 Parma) by 12:00 PM on December 23, 2025, according to one of the following methods:

- 1. In person delivery;
- 2. Sending by mail (the postmark date is NOT valid);
- 3. Sending via Certified Email (from the candidate's personal certified email address PEC) to protocollo@pec.unipr.it (cc erasmus@unipr.it). In the subject, indicate "Paper application mobility SMS NAME SURNAME";
- 4. Sending via electronic mail (from the institutional email address "nome.cognome@studenti.unipr.it" or "nome.cognome@unipr.it") to protocollo@unipr.it (cc erasmus@unipr.it). In this case, it is mandatory to attach a copy (front/back) of a valid identity document.

In case of problems with the online application, exclusively attributable to technical issues, please report it promptly to the U.O. Accoglienza, Mobilità e Studenti Internazionali (Welcome, Mobility and International Students Org. Unit) (erasmus@unipr.it or overworld@unipr.it).

#### **1.8 Selection Procedures**

The evaluation is divided into two parts:

- 1. A part predetermined by the University's information system, which has a weight equal to 50% of the overall evaluation and a maximum overall value of 50/100 points, based on study progress, weighted average evaluation and evaluation of acquired university credits;
- 2. A part expressed by the International Mobility Commission evaluation, appointed by rectoral decree, having a weight equal to 50% of the overall evaluation and a maximum overall value of 50/100 points (see Annex D Specific Selection Criteria).

In case of equal score, priority is given to the chronologically younger candidate.

Candidates are required to **verify the date, place and time of the interviews**, if provided for by the competent judging Commission, which will be published on the same page as this Call.

For the purposes of the evaluation and selection procedures, based on the adopted and published selection criteria (Annex D – **Specific Selection Criteria**), the International Mobility Commission proceeds to draw up the assignment ranking.

The assignments made by the Commissions are incontestable.

### 1.9 Publication of Rankings

The rankings are published on the University portal on the Call page. The publication of the rankings serves as notification and **no further communication will be sent to individual candidates.** The rankings report the candidate's student ID numbers, the score acquired and the evaluation, corresponding to:

• A - ASSIGNED: selected for the institution and holder of a mobility flow;



- N ELIGIBLE: selected for the institution but on the waiting list as the available places are assigned;
- E EXCLUDED: not selected as not holding the required requirements.

Please note: being awarded a mobility placement under this Call does not guarantee acceptance by the host institution. The host institution reserves the right to reject the application of a student selected by the University of Parma if the required language level is not met or if any other admission requirement is not fulfilled.

In this case, the student cannot be reassigned to an alternative destination, except for special cases which will be managed by the competent Departmental International Mobility Commissions (CMI). The U.O. Accoglienza, Mobilità e Studenti Internazionali of the University has no decision-making power regarding the requirements and admission procedures of partner institutions, nor regarding the decisions to accept or reject the student's application, and is not responsible for managing and resolving situations resulting from the absence of requirements (linguistic or other) required by partner institutions.

### 1.10 Acceptance of the Mobility Placement and Ranking Shifts

The publication of the ranking is scheduled for Monday, March 16, 2026.

Following the publication of the ranking, the selected students must confirm the acceptance of the institution within five (5) days from the date of publication of the ranking. After this deadline, if the acceptance of the assigned mobility placement has not been finalized, they will be automatically considered as having withdrawn, and the place will be assigned to the next person in the ranking.

#### **PLEASE NOTE:**

The order of preference specified in Annex F is, for the student, binding for the assignment of the mobility placement, consequently:

- During the ranking process, a student who has already been assigned to an institution will be
  excluded from any reassignment to destinations listed with a lower priority than the one received."
- at the moment of accepting an institution, the position of eligibility for the other institutions for which one may have been selected automatically ceases to apply.

"In the event of withdrawal by an assigned student, the offices will contact the next candidate in the ranking via their institutional email address (nome.cognome@studenti.unipr.it).

Shifts in the ranking and reassignments take place compatibly with the registration times foreseen by each host University and, in any case, by no later than March 31, 2026. After confirming the acceptance of the place, under penalty of exclusion from the ranking, the assigned student is required to fulfill the administrative and educational requests provided for by the applicable regulations and in accordance with the details in Annexes B and C "Guide to ERASMUS+/OVERWORLD Mobility", with particular attention to the requirements of the host institution.

In case of selection, the following is reminded:

### a) before departure, the selected student must:

- have completed their enrolment for A.Y. 2026/2027 (for students intending to graduate in the extraordinary session of A.Y. 2025/2026, enrolment for A.Y. 2025/2026 will be considered valid, provided that a copy of the conditional graduation application is sent to <a href="mailto:erasmus@unipr.it">erasmus@unipr.it</a>)
- b) during mobility:



- It is not permitted to suspend or interrupt one's academic career, under penalty of exclusion from the benefits (mobility grant and ERASMUS+ student status), reimbursement of any amounts received, and non-recognition of activities carried out abroad
- it is not permitted to take exams or attend teaching activities at the University of Parma;
- it is not possible to obtain the final degree, which can only be obtained after the conclusion of the study period abroad and upon recognition of the activity carried out.

For all aspects related to the management of periods of mobility abroad, selected candidates can refer to Annexes B and C "Guide to ERASMUS+/OVERWORLD Mobility".

The rights and duties related to mobility periods are also detailed in the Erasmus Student Charter.

#### 2. MOBILITY GRANTS

#### 2.1 Available Grants

This Call regulates the modalities to access the available financial grants. All grants are to be understood as partial coverage of the additional costs incurred during travel and the period of stay abroad.

The funding made available by this Call varies depending on:

- the mobility area for which one is selected;
- the destination Country;
- the Mobility Program contributing to the funding;
- the duration of the period spent abroad;
- the economic/patrimonial requirements and/or conditions of fewer opportunities (to be declared before the start of mobility).

The available grants cover periods of Physical Mobility (PM) or the physical part of a Blended Mobility (BM). No grants are available for virtual mobility. The amount of the grants under this call also applies to similar ERASMUS+ mobility projects subject to subsequent calls during the 2026-2027 academic year.

Grants are divided into ordinary grants and supplementary grants.

Ordinary grants are all grants provided to support the mobility period that do not require beneficiaries to meet specific categories or conditions. These grants correspond to the minimum amount allocated for mobility support. This type includes:

#### for long-term mobility

- o ERASMUS+ community grant for mobility (applicable to the "ERASMUS+ SMS" and "EU GREEN" areas)
- o OVERWORLD Grant for mobility (applicable to the "OVERWORLD" and "SPECIAL PROJECTS" areas)
- for short-term mobility (available in the "ERASMUS+ SMS" and "EU GREEN" areas) o ERASMUS+ community grant for mobility.

Supplementary grants are all grants provided as an addition to the ordinary mobility grant, and vary in amount depending on the applicant's conditions. This type includes:



## · for long-term mobility

- o Grant for travel costs ("ERASMUS+ SMS" and "EU GREEN")
- o EU GREEN Grant ("ERASMUS+ SMS" and "EU GREEN")
- o Double Degree Grant ("ERASMUS+ SMS" and "OVERWORLD")
- o Grant to support students with fewer opportunities and disadvantaged socioeconomic conditions ("ERASMUS+ SMS" and "EU GREEN")
- o MUR "Fondo Giovani" Grant ("ERASMUS+ SMS", "EU GREEN" and "OVERWORLD")

## • for short-term mobility (available exclusively in the "ERASMUS+ SMS" area)

- o Grant for travel costs
- o Additional individual support for students with fewer opportunities

Section 2.5 – Summary Table of Grants provides detailed information on the amounts allocated for different destinations and types of mobility. Further details regarding the conditions, procedures, and timing of grant disbursement can be found in Annexes B and C, 'Guide to ERASMUS+/OVERWORLD Mobility'.

Students enrolled in a PhD program will be required to indicate whether, in relation to the mobility period, they wish to use (alternatively):

- the ERASMUS+/OVERWORLD grant, or
- the increase of the PhD scholarship for the period abroad.

### 2.1.1 The Ordinary ERASMUS+ Grant for Long-term Flows (2-12 months)

In case of mobility in the ERASMUS+ SMS area towards European institutions (and institutions located in non-EU Countries of Regions 13 and 14) for long-term periods, the amount of the monthly ERASMUS+ community grant varies depending on the destination Country as per the following table:

GROUP	COUNTRIES
GROUP 1	Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland, Iceland, Liechtenstein, Luxembourg, Netherlands, Norway, Sweden
(HIGH cost of living)	Non-associated third countries of Region 13: Andorra, Monaco, San Marino, Vatican City State
	Non-associated third countries of Region 14: Faroe Islands, United Kingdom, Switzerland
GROUP 2	Cyprus, Estonia, Greece, Latvia, Malta, Portugal, Czech Republic, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain
(MEDIUM cost of living)	
GROUP 3	Bulgaria, Croatia, Lithuania, North Macedonia, Poland, Romania, Serbia, Turkey,



GROUP COUNTRIES

Hungary

(LOW cost of living)

#### PLEASE NOTE:

Mobilities to the Swiss Confederation that are directly funded by the Swiss Government will not receive the grants referred to in point 2.1.1. In such cases, the procedures and timing for the disbursement of the mobility scholarship will be determined by the host universities abroad. However, if the Swiss Government does not provide mobility grants for the A.Y. 2026/2027, the University of Parma will award a monthly grant equal to the amount established for Group 1 Countries.

For ERASMUS+ SMS mobility to non-European institutions (excluding Countries in Regions 13 and 14, already specified in the previous table), the monthly ERASMUS+ community grant amounts to €700 for mobility flows to all other Regions:

REGION	COUNTRIES
Region 1 - Western Balkans	Albania, Bosnia-Herzegovina, Kosovo, Montenegro
Region 2 - Eastern Partnership	Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Georgia, Moldova, Territory of Ukraine recognized by international law
Region 3 - Southern Mediterranean Countries	Algeria, Egypt, Israel, Jordan, Lebanon, Libya, Morocco, Palestine, Syria, Tunisia
Region 4 – Russian Federation	Territory of Russia recognized by international law
Region 5 - Asia	a) Bangladesh, Bhutan, Cambodia, China, Philippines, India, Indonesia, Laos, Malaysia, Maldives, Mongolia, Myanmar/Burma, Nepal, Pakistan, Democratic People's Republic of Korea, Sri Lanka, Thailand, Vietnam b) High-income countries and territories: Brunei, Japan, Hong Kong, Macao, Republic of Korea, Singapore, Taiwan
Region 6 – Central Asia	Afghanistan, Kazakhstan, Kyrgyzstan, Tajikistan, Turkmenistan, Uzbekistan



America

	a) Iran, Iraq, Yemen
Region 7 – Middle	1

b) High-income countries: Saudi Arabia, Bahrain, United Arab Emirates,

Kuwait, Oman, Qatar

a) Fiji, Cook Islands, Marshall Islands, Solomon Islands, Kiribati,

Micronesia, Nauru, Niue, Palau, Papua New Guinea, Samoa, Timor Leste,

Region 8 – Pacific Tonga, Tuvalu, Vanuatu

b) High-income countries: Australia, New Zealand

Angola, Benin, Botswana, Burkina Faso, Burundi, Cabo Verde, Cameroon, Chad, Comoros, Congo, Côte d'Ivoire, Eritrea, Eswatini, Ethiopia, Gabon, Gambia, Ghana, Djibouti, Guinea, Guinea Bissau, Equatorial Guinea,

Region 9 - Sub-Saharan Africa Kenya, Lesotho, Liberia, Madagascar, Malawi, Mali, Mauritania, Mauritius, Mozambique, Namibia, Niger, Nigeria, Central African Republic,

Mozambique, Namibia, Niger, Nigeria, Central African Republic, Democratic Republic of the Congo, Rwanda, Sao Tomé and Principe, Senegal, Seychelles, Sierra Leone, Somalia, South Africa, Sudan, South

Sudan, Tanzania, Togo, Uganda, Zambia, Zimbabwe

Argentina, Bolivia, Brazil, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador, Region 10 – Latin

Guatemala, Honduras, Mexico, Nicaragua, Panama, Paraguay, Peru,

Uruguay, Venezuela

Antigua and Barbuda, Bahamas, Barbados, Belize, Cuba, Dominica,
Region 11 – Jamaica, Grenada, Guyana, Haiti, Dominican Republic, Saint Kitts and

Caribbean Nevis, Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, Saint Lucia, Suriname,

Trinidad and Tobago

Region 12 – United
States and Canada

Canada, United States of America

#### 2.1.2 The Ordinary OVERWORLD and SPECIAL PROJECTS Grant

The OVERWORLD grant, amounting to €900.00 per month, consists of two combined funding sources (University Funds and the MUR 'Fondo Giovani'), integrated to ensure that each participant receives a fixed monthly amount.

After selection, beneficiaries are required to complete their financial information on the Er.Go portal (Regional Agency for the Right to Higher Education of Emilia-Romagna) in order to access the full grant. Failure to submit the required data will result in the assignment of a standard grant of €500.00 per month

## 2.1.3 Ordinary ERASMUS+ Grant for Short-term Flows (5-30 days)

For ERASMUS+ SMS mobility to European institutions for short-term periods, the amount of the daily ERASMUS+ community grant varies according to the number of days spent at the host institution



## 2.2 Supplementary Grants and Minimum Credits

Supplementary grants are added to ordinary grants in the cases and circumstances outlined in Section 2.5, 'Summary Table of Grants'. A condition common to all supplementary grants is that they are awarded not only on the basis of meeting the required eligibility criteria, but also upon obtaining a minimum number of credits (CFU/ECTS) at the end of the mobility period

The table of minimum credits to be acquired during periods of mobility abroad is as follows:

Number of Months	Number of Days	Minimum CFU
≤2 (short mobility)	≤ 60	3
2-3	From 61 to 90	4
4-5-6-7	From 91 to 210	12
8-9-10	From 211 to 300	24
11-12	From 301 to 360	30

For supplementary grants only, failure to reach the minimum credit requirement for the mobility period will result in the loss of the awarded grants, including any instalments already disbursed.

All grants calculated on the basis of the student's ISEE income bracket ultimately depend on the submission, prior to departure, of the student's ISEE certification (even if it falls within the highest bracket) via the ER.GO portal, in accordance with the instructions that will be published on the Call's webpage.

## 2.3 Further Supplementary Grants

### 2.3.1 Presence of Certified Disabilities or Physical, Mental, or Health Problems

To promote wider participation in mobility, the National ERASMUS+ Agency Italy provides funds for the special needs of students with certified disabilities or physical, mental, or health conditions. These funds may be requested if the grants awarded under this Call are not sufficient to cover all expenses incurred. For further details and to verify eligibility, please contact erasmus@unipr.it. If sufficient EU funds are not available to cover all requests, the University of Parma will provide equivalent support measures, offering financial assistance for the mobility period and all necessary guidance for planning the stay abroad.

## 2.3.2 Socioeconomic Disadvantage Conditions

The presence of disadvantaged economic conditions must not prevent the possibility of carrying out a study period at one of the University of Parma's partner institutions. With particular attention to this type of disadvantage, the sections relating to mobility grants provide a detailed list of available funds to protect those who belong to this category ("2.5 Summary Table of Grants").



## 2.3.3 Er.Go Call Supplementary Grants (External Grants)

Students participating in international study mobility programmes may also apply to the Er.Go Call for the awarding of supplementary international mobility grants. Information will be available on the portal of the Regional Agency. Any benefits awarded in this context will result in the forfeiture of the other supplementary grants described above (see Er.Go Annual Call), but not of ordinary grants.

## 2.4 Compatibility of Mobility Initiatives and Grants

The disbursement of mobility grants under this Call is incompatible with:

- 1. other scholarships financed by the European Union;
- 2. collaboration grants based on national, European or international funds;
- 3. other mobility grants financed by any structure of the University.

## 2.5 Summary Table of Grants

## ORDINARY GRANTS FOR LONG-TERM MOBILITY (2 – 12 MONTHS)

No.	Flow Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
Α	ERASMUS+ SMS Area	Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland, Iceland, Liechtenstein, Luxembourg, Netherlands, Norway, Sweden	400.00 €	Exempt	Automatically disbursed
	EU GREEN Area	Non-associated third countries of Region 13: Andorra, Monaco, San Marino, Vatican City State			
	GROUP 1	Non-associated third countries of Region 14: Faroe Islands, United Kingdom, Switzerland			
В	ERASMUS+ SMS Area	Cyprus, Estonia, Greece, Latvia, Malta, Portugal, Czech Republic,	350.00 €	Exempt	Automatically disbursed



No.	Flow Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
		Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain			
	EU GREEN Area				
	GROUP 2				
С	ERASMUS+ SMS Area	Bulgaria, Croatia, Lithuania, North Macedonia, Poland, Romania, Serbia, Turkey, Hungary	350.00 €	Exempt	Automatically disbursed
	EU GREEN Area				
	GROUP 3				
D	ERASMUS+ SMS Area	Regions: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12	700.00 €	Exempt	Automatically disbursed
	MOBILITY TO PARTNER COUNTRIES				
E	OVERWORLD and SPECIAL PROJECTS Areas	All Countries provided for by the Single Call	900.00 €	Subject to taxation	Automatically disbursed once the financial information has been completed on the Er.Go portal.
F	OVERWORLD and SPECIAL PROJECTS Areas	All Countries provided for by the Single Call	500.00 €	Subject to taxation	Automatically disbursed, in case of failure to complete personal and economic data on the ER.GO portal.



Grant Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
EU GREEN Area	Monthly grant. Mobility to one of the following universities: - Universidad de Extremadura (ES) - Atlantic Technological University (IRL), - Universitatea din Oradea (RO), - Universidade de Evora (PT), - Université d'Angers (FR), - Otto-von-Guericke Universität Magdeburg (DE), - Högskolan i Gävle (SE), - Wrocław University of Environmental and Life Sciences (PL)	100.00€	Exempt	Automatically disbursed
ERASMUS+ SMS Area Double degree	Monthly grant. Participation in double degree programs.			The grant is disbursed after the degree has been awarded by the host institution.
OVERWORLD Area Double degree	Monthly grant. Participation in double degree programs.	100.00€	Subject to taxation	The grant is disbursed after the degree has been awarded by the host institution.
ERASMUS+ SMS Area EU GREEN Area Support for students with fewer opportunities and disadvantaged socioeconomic conditions	Monthly. The grant is reserved for students with an ISEE indicator of ≤ €27,000 per year. It is awarded up to the first year beyond the standard duration of the degree programme (with reference to the academic year of mobility). The grant is also awarded to:  • students with certified	250.00€	Exempt	Automatically disbursed upon completion of the economic situation on the ER.GO portal and/or upon delivery of documentation proving the condition.



Tax **Grant Type** Detail **Amount** Notes Regime physical, mental, or health problems • students with minor children · working students • student athletes competing at a professional level • students who have lost at least one parent • students who are children of victims of terrorism or organised crime.

**ERASMUS+SMS** Area EU GREEN Area (for other areas, this grant is already included in the ordinary part) MUR Fondo Giovani Grant

Monthly (calculated on ISEE year 2025) ISEE  $\leq 0 \leq$ 27,000.00 ISEE > 27,000.01 ≤ 30,000.00 ISEE > 30,000.01 ≤ 40,000.00 ISEE > 40,000.01 ≤ 70,000.00

400.00€ 350.00€ Exempt 300.00€ 250.00€

Automatically disbursed upon completion of the economic situation on the ER.GO portal and upon verification of acquisition of the minimum number of credits. The grant is not disbursed in case of failure to complete personal and economic data on the ER.GO portal (ISEE certification), or by not reaching the required minimum credits. In its maximum amount, the grant is also recognized for the following cases: disability with a recognized degree equal to or greater than 66%; status of refugee, subsidiary protection, evacuees, caregivers (art. 1, comma 250, Law no. 205 of 2017); beneficiary of scholarships from the Italian Government.



Support for vulnerable groups and students with disabilities

The procedures for accessing these grants will be published as soon as they are made available by the National Erasmus+ Agency Italy. If selected, and if you belong to one of the relevant categories, you are advised to promptly contact the University's U.O. Accoglienza, Mobilità e Studenti Internazionali (erasmus@unipr.it).

## **SUPPLEMENTARY GRANTS FOR TRAVEL COSTS\***

## The following grants are applied to the ERASMUS+ SMS for both long and short duration

Grant Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
ERASMUS+ SMS Area EU GREEN Area V1 Travel Cost Grant	One-off grant based on the kilometer distance between the home and host institution.	10-99 Km = 28 € 100-499 Km = 121€ 500-1999 Km = 305 € 2000-2999 Km = 395 € 3000-3999 Km = 550 € 4000-7999 Km = 1188 € 8000 - beyond = 1735 €	Exempt	Automatically disbursed at the end of the mobility
ERASMUS+ SMS Area EU GREEN Area V2 GREEN Travel Cost Grant	One-off grant based on the kilometer distance between the home and host institution.	10-99 Km = 56 € 100-499 Km = 285 € 500-1999 Km = 417 € 2000-2999 Km = 835 € 3000-3999 Km = 785 € 4000-7999 Km = 1188 € 8000 - beyond = 1735 €	Exempt	Disbursed at the end of the mobility upon delivery of documentation proving the journey was made using a sustainable means of transport.

## ORDINARY GRANTS FOR SHORT-TERM MOBILITY (5 – 30 DAYS)

Grant Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
ERASMUS+ SMS Area EU GREEN Area SM - Short-term mobility (5-30 days) towards Group 1, Group 2, Group 3 Countries, and Partner Countries		79.00€	Exempt	Disbursed upon verification of the number of days spent in mobility



Grant Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
ERASMUS+ SMS Area EU GREEN Area SM - Short-term mobility (5-30 days) towards Group 1, Group 2, Group 3 Countries, and Partner Countries		56.00€	Exempt	Disbursed upon verification of the number of days spent in mobility

# Short-term mobility does not apply to the OVERWORLD and SPECIAL PROJECTS areas

# **SUPPLEMENTARY GRANTS FOR SHORT-TERM MOBILITY (5 – 30 DAYS)**

No.	Grant Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
KH.	ERASMUS+ SMS Area EU GREEN Area Additional contribution to individual support for students with fewer opportunities	Daily grant. The grant is reserved for students with an ISEE indicator ≤ €27,000 per year. Daily amount up to the 14th day	100.00	Exempt	Disbursed upon verification of the number of days spent in mobility and the ISEE indicator and/or upon delivery of documentation proving the condition.
	ERASMUS+ SMS Area EU GREEN Area Additional contribution to individual support for students with fewer opportunities	Daily grant. The grant is reserved for students with an ISEE indicator ≤ €27,000 per year. Daily amount from the 15th to the 30th day	150.00 €	Exempt	Disbursed upon verification of the number of days spent in mobility and the ISEE indicator and/or upon delivery of documentation proving the condition.
	ERASMUS+ Travel Grant Support for Travel to	Grant for travel costs Official distance calculator available here			



No.	Grant Type	Detail	Amount	Tax Regime	Notes
	Countries participating in the Program (GROUPS 1, 2 and 3, excluding Regions 13 and 14)	and-tools/distance-calculator			Green) of travel.

#### **MOBILITY AND EMERGENCY CONDITIONS**

A mobility period can be conditioned by the socio-political and health security status of each Country. It is the duty of the student to carry out conscious monitoring of the conditions of the Countries in which the Universities of interest are located.

Decisions regarding the departure or reception of mobility students fall under the responsibility of:

- the governments of the home countries of the partner institutions;
- the individual partner institutions of the University of Parma, which may take decisions directly affecting mobility (e.g., introduction of distance learning, suspension of incoming mobility, etc.);
- the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and International Cooperation, which may advise against travel to the destination;
- the University of Parma which, after consulting the relevant parties, may determine that sending its mobility students to, or allowing them to remain in, the destination country is unsafe.

Constantly updated information is available on the page https://www.viaggiaresicuri.it;

The Coordinators of the individual agreements, the Departmental International Mobility Commissions and the U.O. Accoglienza, Mobilità e Studenti Internazionali of the University provide the selected students with the necessary updates.

If any of the above conditions arise, the following options may be evaluated, subject to the requirements and availability of the partner institutions:

- modification of the planned mobility structure (e.g., transition from physical mobility to blended or virtual mobility);
- possible relocation to another host institution (where feasible), taking into account the student's profile, though not necessarily following the original order of preference;
- deferral of the mobility to the next academic year, if compatible with the student's academic progress;
- cancellation of the mobility.

Students are reminded that, during their mobility period, it is important to register on the 'Dove siamo nel Mondo' portal, available both online and as an app.



### **CONTACTS**

U.O. Accoglienza, Mobilità e Studenti Internazionali – Erasmus and International Home

P. le San Francesco, 3 – 43121 Parma

Tel.: +39.0521.904203

erasmus@unipr.it - overworld@unipr.it

Delegate for ERASMUS+ Programs and Mobility - Prof. Ilaria Zanotti
Pro-Rector for International Relations and Mobility - Prof. Maria Cecilia Mancini

#### **RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROCEDURE**

The personal data provided by candidates to the University of Parma will be processed, in paper or digital form, solely for purposes related to the selection procedure and the management of any subsequent employment relationship, in accordance with applicable regulations. The provision and collection of such data are mandatory for the processing of the selection procedure. In the case of special categories of data, pursuant to Article 9 of EU Regulation 2016/679, processing is carried out for the purposes set out in Law 63/1999 and Law 104/1992. The provision of the data indicated in the Call is compulsory and necessary for the assessment of the admission requirements, and failure to provide them will result in exclusion from the selection process.

The data collected within the scope of this administrative procedure may be communicated to other offices of the University of Parma and to external entities strictly to the extent necessary to carry out their institutional functions, in accordance with current legislation.

Candidates have the rights set out in Chapter III of EU Regulation 2016/679, including the right to access their personal data and to request their rectification, updating, or deletion if the data are incomplete, inaccurate, or collected in violation of the law, as well as the right to object to their processing on legitimate grounds.

Pursuant to Law no. 241 of 7 August 1990, as amended by Law no. 15 of 11 February 2005, the Manager responsible for the selection procedures is Dr. Elena Raschiani, Head of the Organizational Unit (U.O.) Accoglienza, Mobilità e Studenti Internazionali

Parma, 18/11/2025

THE RECTOR
Paolo MARTELLI

Digitally signed pursuant to Legislative Decree no. 82/2005